## **Instructions to Bidders**

Project:	Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage CRDA Project # 19-005
Location	125 and 133 Riverside Drive and Ensign Street in East Hartford, Connecticut

# Table of Contents

3.6

LEGAL NOTI	CE – INVITATION TO BID	3
PART 1 – PRC	DJECT DESCRIPTION	5
PART 2 – PRO	DJECT SCOPE OF WORK & PHASING	
2.1	Project Scope	6
2.2	Project Schedule	9
PART 3 – GEN	NERAL INFORMATION	
	Definitions1	
3.2	Bidder's Representations1	1
3.3	Bidding Documents 1	1
3.4	Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents1	2
3.5	Substitutions	2

3.7	Performance and Payment Bond Requirements	13
3.8	Insurance	14
3.9	Prevailing Wage	14
3.10	State Labor Standards Provisions, Laws and Regulations	15
3.11	DAS Contractor Prequalification Certification	15
3.12	Incurring Cost	15
PART 4 – COM	MPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND CERTIFICATIONS	
4.1	Non-Discrimination in Employment	15
4.2	Ethics Affidavits and Certifications	16

## PART 5 - GENERAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS

5.1	Taxes	17
5.2	Miscellaneous	17

## PART 6 – BID PROCEEDURES AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

6.1	TIME LINE	18
6.2	Pre-Bid Conference	18
6.3	Bidder Question Procedure	19
6.4	Preparation and Submission of Bid	19
6.5	Bid Security	20
6.6	Modification or Withdrawal of Bid	20
6.7	Post Bid Scope Review Meeting	20
6.8	Consideration of Bids	20
6.9	Acceptance of Bid	21
Document App	endix	22
Conflict of Interest Statute		

Attachment 1, List of Bid Forms	. 23
Bid Form (including Addenda Acknowledgement, Subcontractor List and Bid Guarantee)	. 24
Attachment 2, Labor and Equipment Rates	. 35
Attachment 3, Sample Contract	. 36
Attachment 4, Goodwin College Schedule	. 37
Attachment 5, Department of Labor Prevailing Wage RFP Package	. 38
Schedule A, Plans and Specifications	. 39
Schedule B, Vendor Terms and Conditions	.40
Attachment 6, Riverside Drive Outfall Drawings	
Attachment 7, Ensign Street Drainage Design Drawings	
Attachment 8, Division 01 General Requirements	
Attachment 9, Riverside Drive Project Manual	
Attachment 10, Ensign Street Project Manual	
Attachment 11, Goodwin Ensign & Main Project (provided for reference)	

# **LEGAL NOTICE – INVITATION TO BID**

## Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage CRDA Project # 19-005 East Hartford, CT

The Capital Region Development Authority is undertaking construction of the Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage. CRDA intends to enter into a contract with a qualified site contractor to provide pre-construction, construction and post-construction services for this project.

Sealed bids for the above project must be received by the Capital Region Development Authority (CRDA), 100 Columbus Boulevard, Suite 500, Hartford CT 06103 (Attention: Erica Levis), by **11:00 AM on June 28, 2019** after which time they will be publicly opened and read in a location to be determined at 100 Columbus Boulevard.

The Riverside Drive Outfall project is located at 125 & 133 Riverside Drive in East Hartford, CT. The Ensign Street Drainage Project is across Rt 2 from the Riverside Drive Outfall Project between Main Street and Willowbrook Road in East Hartford, CT.

The Riverside Drive Outfall Project consists of the construction of a 54" reinforced concrete storm sewer system with a 72" outfall to the Connecticut River, which will replace an existing 36" outfall to the south of the new outfall, and connect to and receive runoff from an older 36" storm sewer pipe located within Riverside Drive and also from a recently installed 36" storm pipe within Riverside Drive and Ensign Street. Deep excavation of 20 feet +/- is expected on a portion of this project. Extensive dewatering and shoring will be critical in this area and prospective bidders should be aware of this.

The Riverside Drive Outfall Project includes erosion and sedimentation control, demolition, bulkheading of existing storm drainage to be abandoned in place, and new storm drainage installation including new pavement construction, granite curbs, concrete sidewalks, line painting, signage and other finish work where required.

Endangered species of Mussels have been identified within the CT River in the area of the outfall. The outfall (work in the CT River) must be done after the completion of Mussel relocation. Mussel relocation to be coordinated and paid for by the Owner and to be completed between May and late September, river conditions permitting. Mussel relocation to be completed maximum of two weeks prior to work in CT River. Contractor to schedule his work accordingly.

The Ensign Street Drainage Project consists of the removal of the existing storm drainage system within Ensign Street between Main Street and Willowbrook Road and the installation of a new storm drainage system consisting of a 36" and 24" trunk storm sewer and catch basins connected into the trunk sewer with pipes ranging from 12" to 18" in size.

The Ensign Street Storm Drainage Project includes installation of storm drainage, new pavement construction, bituminous and granite curbs, concrete sidewalk reconstruction, line painting and other finish work where required.

The MDC will be conducting some sewer line upgrades along Ensign Street concurrently with this project. The successful bidder must coordinate with MDC to insure the two projects flow smoothly.

Also, there is a Goodwin College project on the south side of Ensign Street and Main Street that the bidders should be aware of. There is a storm drain tie-in and a roadway intersection work that needs to be coordinated between the projects. The successful bidder shall maintain access and cooperate with that contractor.

Plans, specifications and documents for the project are available for viewing and downloading on the State

Contracting Portal at <u>http://das.ct.gov</u>, and the CRDA website <u>http://www.cceda.net/about\_us/rfps\_contracts.html</u>, and may be examined at the Capital Region Development Authority, 100 Columbus Boulevard Suite 500, Hartford CT (contact Erica Levis at <u>elevis@crdact.net</u>).

Bidders are advised that a good faith effort is required for participation in this contract by Small Business Enterprises (SBE) and Minority Business Enterprises (MBE). The SBE goal is twenty-five (25) percent of the contract value, with twenty-five (25) percent of that amount (6.25 percent of the overall project) as the MBE goal.

Bidders are advised that prevailing wages are required on this project.

A mandatory pre-bid walk through will be held starting at the project site 125 Riverside Drive East Hartford, CT at 1:00 PM on May 15, 2019.

CRDA reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to waive any or all informalities or technical defects, if it is deemed to be in the best interest of CRDA.

An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. Minority/Women's Business Enterprises are encouraged to apply.

## **PART 1 – PROJECT DESCRIPTION**

## 1.1 PROJECT: Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage CRDA Project # 19-005

125 and 133 Riverside Drive and Ensign Street in East Hartford, Connecticut

## 1.2 DUE DATE: <u>June 28, 2019</u>

TIME: 11:00 AM

## **1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION**

The Riverside Drive Outfall project is located at 125 & 133 Riverside Drive in East Hartford, CT. The Ensign Street Drainage Project is across Rt 2 from the Riverside Drive Outfall Project between Main Street and Willowbrook Road in East Hartford, CT.

The Riverside Drive Outfall Project consists of the construction of a 54" reinforced concrete storm sewer system with a 72" outfall to the Connecticut River, which will replace an existing 36" outfall to the south of the new outfall, and connect to and receive runoff from an older 36" storm sewer pipe located within Riverside Drive and also from a recently installed 36" storm pipe within Riverside Drive and Ensign Street. Deep excavation of 20 feet +/- is expected on a portion of this project. Extensive dewatering and shoring will be critical in this area and prospective bidders should be aware of this.

The Riverside Drive Outfall Project includes erosion and sedimentation control, demolition, bulkheading of existing storm drainage to be abandoned in place, new storm drainage installation including new pavement construction, granite curbs, concrete sidewalks, line painting, signage and other finishes where required.

Endangered species of Mussels have been identified within the CT River in the area of the outfall. The outfall (work in the CT River) must be done after the completion of Mussel relocation. Mussel relocation to be coordinated and paid for by the Owner and to be completed between May and late September, river conditions permitting. Mussel relocation to be completed maximum of two weeks prior to work in CT River. Contractor shall schedule its work accordingly.

The Ensign Street Drainage project consists of the removal of the existing storm drainage system within Ensign Street between Main Street and Willowbrook Road and the installation of a new storm drainage system consisting of a 36" and 24" trunk storm sewer and catch basins connected into the trunk sewer with pipes ranging from 12" to 18" in size.

The Ensign Street Storm Drainage Project includes installation of storm drainage, new pavement construction, bituminous and granite curbs, concrete sidewalk reconstruction, line painting and other finish work where required.

The MDC will be conducting some sewer line upgrades along Ensign Street concurrently with this project. The successful bidder must coordinate with MDC to insure the two projects flow smoothly.

Also, there is a Goodwin College project on the south side of Ensign Street and Main Street that the bidders should be aware of. There is a storm drain tie-in and a roadway intersection work that needs to be coordinated between the projects. The successful bidder shall maintain access and cooperate with that contractor.

## PART 2 – PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK & SCHEDULE

**2.1 Scope** -- This project includes, but is not limited to, all work required or inferred to complete the demolition, abandonment and installation of new drainage systems including all required finishes as shown on the Riverside Outfall Project design documents and Project Manual; the Ensign Street Drainage design documents and Project Manual and the following description of the scope of work:

- A. General Requirements as detailed in the Division 01 Specifications and including the following:
  - a. Procuring all necessary roadway work and road closure permits necessary for construction including an excavation permit. A Waiver of Claim must be filed on the land records.
  - b. Coordinate and schedule all required inspections; including, but not limited to, Town of East Hartford, DEEP, MDC, Connecticut Natural Gas, Eversource, Frontier and Comcast.
  - c. Develop a compressive staging plan for the Owner's approval. Provide a monthly update of the approved staging plan or more often if required.
  - d. Develop a detailed critical path construction schedule for the Owner's approval. A copy of the Goodwin College 2019 Schedule is attached to this bid package and is subject to change. The bidders shall allow for five (5) shutdown days that will be used at the sole discretion of Goodwin College with two weeks prior notice.
  - e. Maintain overall construction sequence and staging in accordance with the approved staging plan and construction schedule.
  - f. Provide overall utility coordination and scheduling of inspections.
  - g. Provide traffic control as needed.
  - h. Provide temporary facilities, including temporary power necessary to complete the Work.
  - i. Provide temporary signage, barricades and fencing as required to maintain a safe and secure site. All open excavations must be protected with hard fencing.
  - j. Goodwin College will continue to occupy the site and existing buildings during the entire construction period. Cooperate with Goodwin College during construction operations to minimize conflicts and facilitate their use of their facilities. Perform the Work so as not to interfere with Goodwin College's operations. Protection of surrounding areas is critical.
  - k. Goodwin College has developed specific standards of conduct deemed necessary to ensure the orderly and efficient performance of duties and services at the College and to protect the health, safety, and welfare of all members of the College community. The contractor(s) are required to adhere to these standards while working on site.
  - 1. Coordinate construction operations included in various Sections of the Project Specifications to assure efficient and orderly installation of each part of the Work. Coordinate construction operations included under different Sections that depend on each other for proper installation, connection, and operation.
  - m. Coordinate scheduling and timing of required administrative procedures with other construction activities to avoid conflicts and assure orderly progress of the Work. Such administrative activities include, but are not limited to, the following:
    - i. Preparation of schedules.
    - ii. Delivery and processing of submittals, shop drawings and required product data.
    - iii. Attend Pre-Construction Conference
    - iv. Attend Biweekly Progress meetings with the Owner.

Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage, CRDA 19-005

- v. Provide photo documentation
- vi. Implement a quality Control Program
- vii. Develop a site-specific safety program
- viii. Provide a security program and facilities to protect work, existing facilities, and Owner's operations from unauthorized entry, vandalism, and theft. Coordinate with Goodwin's s security program.
- ix. Prepare daily construction reports
- x. Project closeout activities.
- n. Environmental Protection: After award of Contract and prior to the commencement of the Work, schedule and conduct meeting with Owner and Engineer to discuss the proposed Environmental Protection Plan and to develop mutual understanding relative to details of environmental protection. Comply with applicable regulations and these specifications. Preserve the natural resources within the Project boundaries and outside the limits of permanent Work performed under this Contract in their existing condition or restore to an equivalent or improved condition as approved by CRDA and Owner.
- o. Provide and maintain the Project Sign.
- p. Provide as-built drawings
- B. Land Clearing and Site Preparation
  - a. Provide field engineering including survey for stake out. Owner will provide two (2) control points for the Riverside Drive Outfall Project and two (2) control points for the Ensign Street Drainage Project.
  - b. Locate and protect existing trees to remain.
  - c. Locate and protect existing utility services to remain within the Limit of Construction, including, overhead and subsurface electrical cables, sanitary and storm sewer systems, water and gas service, utility poles, and telephone, security and communications lines.
  - d. The approximate Limits of Construction for the Riverside Drive Outfall Project is the area required to remove, bulkhead and abandon the existing drainage and drainage outfall as shown on sheet DP-1 and the area required to install the new drainage extending from the CT River outfall to the intersection of Riverside Drive and Ensign Street as shown on SP-1 including (1) the existing 33' Wide Sewer and Drainage Right of Way in Favor of the Town of East Hartford as shown on Outfall Project sheet DP-1, (2) the Proposed 33' wide Drainage Right of Way and 20' Wide Drainage Right of Way in Favor of the Town of East Hartford as shown on Sheet EP-1, and (3) work in the Riverside Drive Right of Way as shown on SP-1.
  - e. The approximate Limits of Construction for the Ensign Street Drainage Project is the area required to remove the existing drainage system as shown on the Ensign Street Project DP-1 and replace with new as shown on PP-1 and PP-2. Roadway reconstruction limits are shown on RR-1 and GP-1.
  - f. Complete clearing and grubbing within Limits of Construction as required to complete the scope of work including removal of trees, tree stumps and vegetation.
  - g. Site Demolition Remove and properly dispose of debris from project site, including saw cutting, and demolition of miscellaneous structures. Abandon and remove existing utilities as required. Provide bulkheads at existing utilities designated to be abandoned in place as shown on drawings DP-1.

- h. Install and maintain temporary construction entrance and erosion control devices, including dust control and street sweeping as needed on a daily basis.
- i. Rough grade area within the Limits of Construction as defined in 2.1.B.d & e above as required.
- C. Installation of Site Utilities
  - a. Furnish and install storm drainage system, including structures, pipes, trenching, bedding, backfilling, warning tape, connection to existing system, cleaning, testing, and associated items.
  - b. Protect existing adjacent utilities as required.
- D. Site Finishes
  - a. Furnish and install approved soil and aggregate materials for subgrade, subbase and base for sidewalks, driveway aprons, curbing, sidewalk, utility structures, etc. Reset manholes, gate boxes, pull boxes, etc. to match proposed grades as needed.
  - b. Furnish and install bituminous and granite curbing as shown.
  - c. Furnish and install bituminous concrete pavement for roadway including binder and surface course.
  - d. Furnish and install bituminous concrete sidewalks, concrete handicapped ramps, including ADA warning detectors.
  - e. Provide topsoil, fine grade seed and mulch.
  - f. Liquid Asphalt Adjustment for year two of the project:

The asphalt adjustment cost will be based on the variance in price for the performance-graded binder component of hot mix asphalt (HMA) mixtures completed and accepted in the contract. An asphalt adjustment cost will be applied only if all of the following conditions are met:

a) The HMA mixture in which the adjustment is being applied is listed as a contract item with a pay unit of tons or metric tons.

b) The total quantity for all HMA mixtures in a contract exceeds 1000 tons or more.

c) The difference between the posted *Asphalt Base Price* and *Asphalt Period Price* varies by more than \$5.00.

The Connecticut Department of Transportation (ConnDOT) shall post on its website, the average per ton selling price (asphalt price) of the performance-graded binder. The average is based on the high and low selling price published in the most recent available issue of the Asphalt Weekly Monitor® furnished by Poten & Partners, Inc. under the "East Coast Market – New England, New Haven, Connecticut area", F.O.B. manufacturer's terminal.

The selling price furnished from the Asphalt Weekly Monitor  $\mathbb{B}$  is based on a standard ton (US\$/ST). The metric ton price is determined by applying a factor of 1.1023 (US\$/ST x 1.1023 = US\$/mton). Example: \$150.00/ton x 1.1023 = \$165.34/mton

Formula: HMA x  $\underline{PG\%}$  x [(Period Price - Base Price] = \$\_\_\_\_\_

- HMA: The quantity (tons or metric tons) of accepted HMA mixture measured and accepted for payment.

- <u>Asphalt Base Price</u>: The asphalt price that is posted on the ConnDOT website 28 days before the actual bid opening posted.

- <u>Asphalt Period Price</u>: The asphalt price that is posted on the ConnDOT website for the period in which the HMA mixture is placed. <u>https://www.ct.gov/dot/cwp/view.asp?a=1410&q=399708</u>

Performance-Graded Binder percentage (PG%) for HMA mixes:

PG% = 4.5

• For Superpave 37.5mm (1.5 inch), Superpave 25.0mm (1.0 inch), HMA S1, and Class 4

PG % = 5.0

• For Superpave 12.5mm (0.50 inch), HMA S0.5 and Class 1.

PG % = 6.0

• For Superpave 0.375 inch (9.5mm), HMA S0.375, Superpave 6.25mm (0.25 inch), HMA S0.25, Superpave 4.75mm (#4) and Class 2.

The adjustment shall not be considered as a changed condition in the contract because of this provision and because the Contractors are being notified before submission of bids.

**Basis of Payment:** The "Asphalt Adjustment Cost" will be calculated using the formula indicated above. A payment will be made for an increase in costs. A deduction from monies due the Contractor will be made for a decrease in costs.

The sum of money shown on the estimate, and in the itemized proposal as "Estimated Cost", for this item will be considered the bid price although payment will be made as described above. The estimated cost figure is not to be altered in any manner by the bidder. If the bidder should alter the amount shown, the altered figure will be disregarded, and the original cost figure will be used to determine the amount of the bid for the Contract.

- E. Project Close-Out
  - a. Following site construction, clean all components of site drainage system, including all catch basins, manholes and piping.
  - b. Following completion of the work, remove all temporary erosion control devices and temporary facilities.
  - c. Assist the Engineer in preparation of as-built drawings.
  - d. Complete all required close-out documents

## 2.2 Project Schedule –

- A. Mobilize within two weeks of Contract Award.
- B. Coordinate Mussel Relocation schedule with Owner.
- C. Complete all Work by 9/4/2020.
- D. The Town will accept temporary patches suitable for snow plowing at the close of this season. Allbituminous paving must be complete prior to the plant closure in November.
- E. Prepare a detailed critical path schedule and submit to the Owner for approval within fourteen (14) calendar days of Contract Award.

# PART 3 – GENERAL INFORMATION

## 3.1 Definitions

- A. Addenda = written or graphic instruments issued by the Engineer prior to the execution of the Contract which modify or interpret the Bidding Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications or corrections.
- B. Engineer (designer) = Zuvic Carr and Associates, 40 Cold Spring Road Rocky Hill, CT 06067
- C. Base Bid = total sum for which the Bidder offers to perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents.
- D. Base Contract = Scope of Work for all work identified on in the Contract Documents.
- E. Bid = complete and properly signed proposal to do the Work for the sums stipulated therein. A bid is considered complete if it is submitted according to the terms of the Bidding Documents.
- F. Bidder = person or entity who submits a Bid. A Sub-bidder is a person or entity who submits a bid to a Bidder for materials, equipment and/or labor for a portion of the Work.
- G. Bidding Requirements shall include:
  - 1. The Invitation to Bid
  - 2. The Instructions to Bidders (ITB) including all Attachments and Schedules
  - 3. The Bid Form (including Addendum Acknowledgement and Subcontractor List)
  - 4. All Bid Documents and forms Listed in Attachment 1.
  - 4. Draft Contract attached here to as Attachment 3.
  - 5. Requirements of Schedule B.
  - 5. The Project Specifications dated September 2019.
  - 6. The Riverside Drive Outfall Project Plans dated May 8, 2017, revised June 7, 2017 and the Ensign Street Drainage Plans dated October 2018.
- H. Contract Sum = equal to the Base Bid. The Contract Sum will be adjusted up or down by approved Contract Change Orders.
- I. Contract Documents =
  - 1. The form of Agreement between the Owner and Contractor attached here to as Attachment 3.
  - 2. Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions).
  - 3. Signed and Sealed Bid Submission Documents
  - 3. Project Drawings by Zuvic/Carr and Associates: Riverside Drive Outfall Project Plans dated May 8, 2017, revised June 7, 2017 and the Ensign Street Drainage Plans dated October 2018.
  - 4. Project Specifications by Zuvic/Carr and Associates dated September 2018.
  - 5. Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract.
- J. Contractor as used in the ITB = the Successful Bidder.
- K. Invitation to Bid = The Invitation to Bid (abbreviated ITB) shall include the Legal Notice, Instruction to Bidders, Bid Form, Project Drawings and Project Manuals (Specifications) by Zuvic/Carr and Associates, Addenda issued prior to the Bid Due Date and all related Exhibits, Attachments and other documents commonly referred to collectively as the Bid Documents.

- L. Limits of Construction = is the area in which the Work of this Contract will be performed as shown on the Riverside Drive Outfall sheets DP-1 and SP-1 and Ensign Street Drainage sheets DP-1, PP-2, RR-1 and GP-1 and as defined in 2.1.B.d & e above.
- M. Owner = The owner of Riverside Drive, Ensign Street, Crosby St., King Ct. and the storm drainage infrastructure is the Town of East Hartford. Construction of a portion of this project occurs on land owned by Goodwin College under a drainage right of way in favor of the Town of East Hartford. The project is funded by the State of Connecticut. Funds will be administered by the Capital Region Development Authority (CRDA), 100 Columbus Boulevard, Suite 500, Harford, CT 06103-2819, Phone: (860) 527-0100. CRDA will hold the construction contract and oversee Construction. Where "Owner" appears in the RFP and contract documents, it shall generally refer to CRDA, but when referencing meetings and inspections, may also include representatives of the Town of East Hartford and Goodwin College.
- N. CRDA Designated Representative for Bid Administration = Erica Levis, <u>elevis@crdact.net</u>
- O. Project = Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage CRDA Project # 19-005
- P. Successful Bidder a qualified bidder who has complied with all of the requirements of the Bid Documents and is the apparent low Bidder to whom CRDA makes an award.
- Q. Definitions established in the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, or in the other Contract Documents are applicable to the Bidding Documents.

### **3.2 Bidder's Representations**

- A. By making a Bid, the Bidder represents that:
  - 1. The Bidder has carefully examined the Bidding Documents, the requirements are clear, and concurs with them. The Bid is made in full agreement with those requirements.
  - 2 The Bidder understands the requirements of the Bidding Documents to the extent that such documentation relates to the Work for which the Bid is submitted, and for other portions of the Project, if any, being bid concurrently or presently under construction.
  - 3 The Bidder and appropriate Sub-bidders have visited the site, have become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, site conditions, logistics and have correlated the Bidder's personal observations with the requirements of the Bidding Documents.
  - 4 The submission of a bid or proposal by a contractor for the whole or any part of the work contained in the specifications shall constitute an acceptance by such contractor of the terms and conditions of all duly promulgated ordinances and regulations of the Location (Town or City) that the Work is being performed at to the extent the same are applicable; and a contract awarded in response to such bid or proposal shall be deemed to incorporate all such pertinent ordinances and regulations.
  - 5 The Bid is based upon the materials, equipment and systems required by the Bidding Documents without exception or qualification.
  - 6 The Bidder has not colluded with any other person in regard to any Bid or sub-bid submitted.

### **3.3 Bidding Documents**

A. Documents are available only in complete sets

2. Bidders shall use complete sets of Bidding Documents in preparing Bids. The Owner and Architect assume no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.

Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage, CRDA 19-005 Page 11

- 3. Copies of the Bidding Documents are made available for the sole purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work. No license or permission is granted for any other use of the Bidding Documents.
- 4. The Invitation to Bid, Bid Documents and any Addendums will be posted on the Department of Administrative Services (DAS) website <u>www.das.ct.gov</u> located under the State Procurement Marketplace, State Contracting Portal; click on the Contracting Organization "Capital Region Development Authority," as well as the CRDA website, <u>http://crdact.net/about\_us/rfps\_contracts.html</u>
- Drawings, specifications and related bid documents may be examined at the Capital Region Development Authority, 100 Columbus Boulevard Suite 500, Hartford CT (Connecticut Convention Center 5<sup>th</sup> floor) contact Erica Levis at <u>elevis@crdact.net</u>

## 3.4 Interpretation or Correction of Bidding Documents

- A. Bidders shall thoroughly examine and be familiar with the drawings and the specifications. The failure or omission of any Bidder to receive or examine any form, instrument, or document shall in no way relieve the Bidder from any obligation with respect to his bid.
- B. Bidders shall carefully examine the contents of this Invitation to Bid (ITB) and related documents. Any ambiguities or inconsistencies shall be brought to the attention of CRDA in writing by 3:00 p.m. on June 11, 2019. Failure to do so will constitute your acceptance of any subsequent interpretation or decision made by CRDA.
- C. No interpretation of the meaning of this ITB will be made orally. In the event that CRDA provides any interpretation, only written interpretations will be binding upon CRDA. All questions, clarifications and other responses will be posted on the State Contracting Portal and the CRDA website in accordance with the Bid Timeline. Any addenda or amendments to this ITB will also be posted on the State Contracting Portal and the CRDA website. Bidders are strongly encouraged to return periodically to the CRDA website for updates and information related to this Invitation to Bid.
- D. Requests for clarification or interpretation of the ITB or Bidding Documents shall be made in writing. The CRDA will accept requests for clarifications up until 3:00 p.m. on June 11, 2019. Clarification or Questions can be emailed to Erica Levis at <u>elevis@crdact.net</u>. Bidders are encouraged to submit questions or requests for clarification as soon as possible.
- E. CRDA reserves the right to respond or not to respond to specific questions, clarifications or requests concerning the ITB process. CRDA acknowledges that information contained in the submission may be subject to the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).
- F. CRDA may amend or cancel this bid or modify the schedule, prior to the due date and time, if CRDA deems it to be necessary, appropriate or otherwise in the best interest of CRDA.

### 3.5 Substitutions

- A. The materials, products and equipment described in the Bidding Documents establish the standard required for the function, dimension, appearance and quality to be met by any proposed substitution.
- B. No substitution will be considered after receipt of Bids unless the written request for approval has been received by the Engineer by the date stipulated in the ITB. Such requests shall include the name of the material or equipment for which it is to be substituted and a complete description of the proposed substitution including drawings, performance and test data, and other information necessary for an evaluation. A statement setting forth changes in other materials, equipment or other portions of the Work including changes in the work of other contracts that incorporation of the proposed substitution is upon the proposer. The Engineer's decision of approval or disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be

final.

C. If the Engineer approves a prop substitution prior to receipt of Bids, such approval will be set forth in an Addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon approvals made in any other manner.

D. No substitutions will be considered after the Contract award unless specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

### 3.6 Addenda

- A. Addenda will be delivered promptly by the issuing office to all Bidders.
- B. Addenda concerning technical matters will not be issued later than the stipulated day prior to the date for receipt of Bids. The CRDA reserves the right to issue an Administrative Addendum at any time, withdrawing the request for Bids or postponing the date for receipt of Bids.
- C. Each Bidder shall confirm, prior to submitting a Bid that the Bidder has received all Addenda issued. The Bidder shall list the Addenda in the Bid.

#### 3.7 Performance and Payment Bond Requirements

- A. Performance and Labor and Material Bonds to be furnished by the bidder awarded the contract shall be an amount not less than 100% of the contract price.
  - 1. Such bonds are required after receipt of bids and before execution of the Contract. The bonds shall be rated A minus or better by A.M. Best. The CRDA is to be listed as the bond oblige.
  - 2. If the Work is to be commenced prior to the execution of the contract, in response to a letter of intent or a limited notice to proceed, the Bidder shall, prior to commencement of the Work, submit evidence satisfactory to CRDA that such bonds will be furnished and delivered in accordance with this Subparagraph.
    - a. It is preferred that the bonds be written on the AIA 312 forms. Both bonds shall be written in the amount of the Contract Sum.
    - b. The bonds shall be dated on the date of the Contract.
    - c. The Bidder shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of the power of attorney.
- B. The Bidder shall furnish with their Bid, evidence of its ability to obtain satisfactory Performance and Labor and Materials Payment Bonds in the full amount of the Contract Sum.
- C. Payment and performance bonds will be required from all subcontractors, except that in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes Sections 49-41, et. seq., the following restrictions apply:

A Payment Bond shall not be required to be furnished in relation to any sub-bid in which the total estimated cost of labor and materials under the contract to which the sub-bid is submitted is less than One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000.00).

A Performance Bond shall not be required to be furnished in relation to any sub-bid in which the total estimated cost of labor and materials under the contract to which the sub-bid is submitted is less than Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00).

If the bidder is a small contractor or minority business enterprise pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 4a-60g, it may provide in lieu of a Payment of Performance bond, a letter of credit in an amount equal to Ten Percent (10%) of the bid if the estimated value of the contract for which the bid is submitted is less than one hundred thousand dollars and in amount equal to Twenty-Five Percent (25%) if the estimated value of such contract is One Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$100,000.00) or greater.

- C. Obliges All performance and payment bonds issued by the Contractor and each of its subcontractors on the Project shall name CRDA as oblige.
- D. Bond Adjustments for Change Order Work
  - 1. Actual additional bonding costs associated with the value of the Change Order will be compensable only when supported by written documentation by the bonding company that the Change Order requires an increase to the original Performance, Payment, Labor or Material Bond.
  - 2. The Contractor shall notify the bonding company at each \$500,000 increase to the contract value as the cumulative result of change orders. A copy of the Consent of Surety must be provided to the Owner prior to the execution of any change order which exceeds each cumulative \$500,000.
  - 3. Mark-up for Overhead and Profit shall not be applied to Change Orders for Increase in Bonds due to Change Order Work.

## 3.8 Insurance

- A. The Successful Bidder shall provide Insurance Liability Coverage as indicated in Schedule B Section 7.
- B. The Successful Bidder shall submit a Certificate of Insurance as required in Schedule B Section 7 prior to the start of any Work on site. The Successful Bidder shall also submit a COI for each of its subcontractors and vendors prior to the start of their work on site.
- C. If the Work is to be commenced prior to the execution of the Contract, in response to a letter of intent or a limited notice to proceed, the Bidder shall, prior to commencement of the Work, Submit such Insurance.

## 3.9 Prevailing Wage

- A. Prevailing Wage Rates: Prevailing wages are required on this project pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 31-53 (a) through (h), as amended. Bidders are also advised to download the CT Department of Labor Prevailing Wage RFP Package at the link provided in the Attachment 5.
- B. Each contractor and subcontractor who is awarded a contract on or after October 1, 2002 shall be subject to provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes, Section 31-55a concerning annual adjustments to prevailing wages.
- C. Wage Rates will be posted each July 1 on the Department of Labor website: <u>https://www.ctdol.state.ct.us/wgwkstnd/prevailwage.htm</u>. Such prevailing wage adjustments shall not be considered a matter for any contract amendment.
- D. The wages paid on an hourly basis to any mechanic, laborer or work person employed upon the work herein contracted to be done and the amount of payment or contribution paid or payable on behalf of each such employee to any employee welfare fund, as defined in subsection (h) of section 31-53 of the Connecticut General Statutes, shall be at a rate equal to the rate customary or prevailing for the same work in the same trade or occupation in the town in which such public works project is being constructed. Any subcontractor who is not obligated by agreement to make payment or contribution on behalf of such employees to any such employee welfare fund shall pay to each employee as part of his wages the amount of payment or contribution for his classification on each pay day.
- E. Certified Payrolls: In accordance with Connecticut General Statutes, 31-53 Certified Payrolls with a statement of compliance shall be submitted monthly to CRDA. Certified payrolls for the Contractor and all subcontractors working during the period shall be submitted with each Contractor's Application for Payment, covering all activities relating to the Application. Pay scale verification as may be required by the Connecticut Department of Labor.

F. The Bidder shall be responsible to manage all processes related to the prevailing wage requirements.

## 3.10 State Labor Standards Provisions, Laws and Regulations

- A. All provisions of all applicable State Labor Standards must be complied with under this Contract. The execution of the Contract by the Bidder binds him to all applicable State Labor Laws and Regulations. All such Standards, Laws and Regulations shall be binding to the same extent as if they were copied at length herein.
- B. As a condition of contract, any out-of-state contractor who is awarded work must provide CRDA with a copy of the State of Connecticut Trade License for Employees working in the State of Connecticut.
- C. Non-Resident Contractors at the time of Contract signing, a certificate from the Commissioner of Revenue Services shall be provided which evidences that C.G.S. 12-430 for non-resident contractors has been met. For details, call the Department of Revenue Services at 1-800-541-3280, ext. 7. A link to the Department of Revenue Services is provided in the Document Appendix.

### 3.11 DAS Contractor Prequalification Certification

A. Bidders shall be prequalified by the Connecticut Department of Administrative Services (DAS) for a minimum of \$2,000,000 for a single project. All prime bidders must be pre-qualified for Sitework. Each bidder shall hold a current "DAS Contractor Prequalification Certificate" (not a predetermination letter) from the Department of Administrative Services of the State of Connecticut according to C.G.S§ 4a-100, C.G.S.§4b-101 and C.G.S.§4b-91. Bidders shall submit with their bids, unless noted otherwise, a "DAS Contractor Prequalificate" along with a current "Update (bid) Statement".

Any bid submitted without a copy of the DAS Prequalification Certificate and an Update (Bid) Statement shall be invalid. If you have any questions regarding these requirements contact DAS at telephone number 860-713-5280 or visit their web site at <u>www.das.ct.gov</u>.

### **3.12 Incurring Cost**

A. Bidders arc solely responsible for any and all cost or expenses incurred in the preparation and submission of this bid.

# PART 4 – COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS AND CERTIFICATIONS

### 4.1 Non-Discrimination in Employment

- A. Each contractor, vendor, and supplier shall be subject to, and shall comply with the following requirements, included herein by reference, to insure through affirmative action that qualified employees, applicants for employment and subcontracting are not discriminated against because of race, creed, color, religion, age, sex, physical disability, or national origin. Said requirements shall include compliance with all applicable Federal, state and local statutes, ordinances and regulations relating to discrimination in employment. It shall be the responsibility of the bidder to be familiar with and knowledgeable about the above.
- B. The apparent successful bidder may be required to undergo a pre-award compliance review for the purpose of ascertaining whether in the opinion of the Owner the bidder is willing and/or capable of complying with the above requirements.
- C. Set-Aside Participation: The contract to be awarded is subject to contract compliance requirements mandated by Sections 4a-60 and 4a- 60a of the Connecticut General Statutes. Refer to the Commission

on Human Rights and Opportunities Contract Compliance Regulations Notification to Bidders at <a href="http://www.ct.gov/chro/lib/chro/Notification\_to\_Bidders.pdf">http://www.ct.gov/chro/lib/chro/Notification\_to\_Bidders.pdf</a>

- D. All bidders must complete, sign, and return the CHRO Contract Compliance Regulations Notification to Bidders form to CRDA. Bids not including this form will be considered incomplete and rejected. CHRO forms can be found at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/chro/cwp/view.asp?a=2525&Q=315900</u>
- E. Nondiscrimination Certification: Prior to award the selected contractor must provide a Nondiscrimination Certification pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes §§ 4a-60(a)(1) and 4a-60a(a)(1), as amended. This Certification form can be found at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=2982&q=390928&opmNav\_GID=1806</u>
- F. Bidders are advised that CRDA has a goal of 25% Small Business Enterprise (SBE) participation and 6.25% Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) participation from lower tier contractors/vendors in this contract. The Contractor is responsible for ensuring the SBE/MBE firms that have been selected are eligible contractors and must submit an Affirmative Action Plan to CHRO detailing their good faith efforts and processes for selecting these MBE/SBE companies.
- G. All provisions of all applicable State Labor Standards must be complied with under this Contract. CRDA is an Affirmative Action Equal Opportunity Employer.

## 4.2 Ethics Affidavits and Certifications –

- A. Bidders are required to provide the following certifications. Links to these forms are provided in the Document Appendix. A link to the summary of State Ethics Laws is also provided.
  - 1. Consulting Agreement Affidavit (Form 5)
  - 2. Affirmation of Receipt of State Ethics Laws Summary (Form 6)
  - 3. Iran Certification (Form 7)
- B. Campaign Contribution and Solicitation Ban: With regard to a State contract as defined in P.A. 07-01 having a value in a calendar year of \$50,000 or more or a combinations or series of such agreements or contracts having a value of \$100,000 or more, the authorized signatory to this submission in response to the State's solicitation expressly acknowledges receipt of the State Election Enforcement Commission's notice advising prospective state contractors of the state campaign contribution and solicitation prohibitions, and will inform its principals of the contents of the notice. See the Document Appendix for link to Notice to Executive Branch State Contractors and Prospective State Contractors of Campaign Contribution and Solicitation Limitations (SEEC Form 10)
- C. A Gift and Campaign Certification form must be updated annually by the successful Bidder. Annually, on or within two (2) weeks of the anniversary date of the execution of this contract, the successful Bidder shall submit a completed Annual Certification with authorizing resolution to CRDA, 100 Columbus Blvd., Suite 500, Hartford, CT 06103-2819. For the purposes of this paragraph, the execution date of the contract will be the date CRDA signs the contract.
- D. Conflict of Interest: All contractors must include a disclosure statement concerning any current business relationships (within the last three years) that pose a conflict of interest as defined by Connecticut General Statutes Section 1-85 (see the statute language in the Document Appendix).
- E. The successful Bidders must submit a [Contractor/Consultant Certification] Gift and Campaign Contribution Certification (Form 1) for contracts with a value of \$50,000 or more. This certification and should be completed and submitted when requested. This Certification can be viewed at <a href="http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=2982&q=386038&opmNav\_GID=1806">http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=2982&q=386038&opmNav\_GID=1806</a>.

F. All acquisitions, agreements and contracts are subject to the provisions of the Connecticut General Statues § 9-612 - regarding CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION RESTRICTION.

# PART 5 – GENERAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS

## 5.1 Taxes:

A. Tax Exempt Project: This project is tax exempt. A certificate of tax exemption will be provided by the CRDA to the successful bidder. State sales and use taxes are excluded except for taxes on rentals, tools, and other incidentals as determined by the state Department of Revenue and for which the Contractor is responsible.

## 5.2 Miscellaneous:

- A. OSHA Training Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 31-53b (a) each contract entered into on or after July 1, 2007, for the construction, remodeling, refinishing, refurbishing, rehabilitation, alteration or repair of any public building project by the state or any of its agents, or by any political subdivision of the state or any of its agents, where the total cost of all work to be performed by all contractors and subcontractors in connection with the contract is at least one hundred thousand dollars, shall contain a provision requiring that, not later than thirty days after the date such contract is awarded, each contractor furnish proof to the Labor Commissioner that all employees performing manual labor on or in such public building, pursuant to such contract, have completed a course of at least ten hours in duration in construction safety and health approved by the federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration or, in the case of telecommunications employees, have completed at least ten hours of training in accordance with 29 CFR 1910.268.It is required that all on-site workers hold current OSHA 10-hour training certifications.
- B. Contract Provisions: Contractor agrees to the provisions set forth below, which shall also be included in any subcontract issued by the Contractor, with the applicability of terms to be adjusted accordingly. Any duplication of provisions already provided in this Contract Agreement shall be disregarded. In the event of a conflict between the following provisions and those contained in this Contract Agreement, the more stringent shall apply:
  - 1. All work is to be performed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents for this Project.
  - 2. The Contractor and all of its subcontractors agree to waive all rights to subrogation against CRDA and CRDA's agents, for damages caused by fire or other perils covered by insurance obtained for or in place upon the Project.
  - 3. The Contractor and all of its subcontractors must carry and maintain insurance coverage in accordance with the Contract Documents and file certificates of such coverage with CRDA.
  - 4. The Contractor and each of the Contractor's subcontractors must cooperate with, CRDA and permit a designated auditor or representative to review and audit the Contractor's books and records in connection with any costs charged to the Project and included in the price of any change orders.
- C. Project Meetings
  - Pre-Construction Meeting Soon after the actual award of the contract (but in any event prior to the start of construction), authorized representatives of the contractor shall attend a Pre-construction Conference. Participants at the conference shall be familiar with the Project and authorized to conclude matters relating to the work. The Owner's Representative will forward the agenda to the successful bidder. The location of this conference will be at the Project Site or another convenient location as directed by the Owner's Representative.
  - 2. Project Meetings Weekly or bi-weekly meetings will be scheduled as needed with CRDA,

Zuvic/Carr and Contractor. The Bid shall include attendance by the Contractor's project manager.

- D. Qualified Work Force The Contractor shall confirm that fabricator/installers meet the qualifications and are approved by the manufacturer if noted for the work to be performed.
- E. Parking: Limited onsite parking is available for tradespersons within the project limits.
- F. Field Office: Goodwin College will allow the contractor to use the basement of the building at 133 Riverside Drive. All utilities are currently active including heat, power, water 2 bathrooms, data and phone.
- G. Welding Protection: The Bid shall include temporary barricades to protect from view any of their burning and welding operations so that other site personnel or passersby cannot look at any flames or welding operations.
- H. Cleanup: The Contractor is responsible for keeping all contracted work areas in a neat and orderly condition. This includes all designated storage areas. This Contractor shall perform daily clean-up operations within contracted work and storage areas.
- I. Waste Disposal: The bid shall include the removal and legal disposal of all soils, stumps and demolished vegetation and construction waste/debris generated by the project including dumpsters.
- J. Power & Water: The bid shall include required temporary power, temporary lighting, and water as needed.
- K. Dust Control: Dust control measures shall be taken by Contractor as required to prevent adverse impacts to the public and environment.
- L. Snow and Ice Removal: Snow and ice removal shall be performed by Contractor as required to support their work.
- O. Toilet Facilities: The Contractor shall provide temporary portable toilets as required to support the road work.
- P. Document Coordination: Should a discrepancy exist between the requirements outlined within the Bid Documents or between the Bid Documents and the plans or specifications, the bid shall include the more stringent requirement.

## **PART 6 – BID PROCEEDURES AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS**

## 6.1 TIME LINE

Documents Available	05/09/19	
Mandatory Pre-Bid Walk Through	05/15/19	(1:00 PM)
Last Day for Questions	06/11/19	(3:00 PM)
Last Addendum	06/14/19	
Bids Due	06/28/19	(11:00 AM)
Scope Reviews	07/01/19	
Contract Award	TBD	
Start Construction	July	

## 6.2 Pre-Bid Conference

A mandatory pre-bid walk through will be held at the site, at **1:00 PM on May 15, 2019**. Meet in the parking lot at 133 Riverside Drive, East Hartford, CT.

## 6.3 Bidder Question Procedure

All technical and bid questions must be in writing and emailed to Erica Levis at the following email address: <u>elevis@crdact.net</u>. No questions shall be accepted after **3:00 on June 11, 2019.** Answers will be provided via addenda issued to all registered bidders and posted on the State Contracting Portal.

## 6.4 Preparation and Submission of Bid

A. The form and style of Bids shall conform to the Bid Form included in this Instruction to Bidders.

- 1. Bids shall be submitted on forms identical to the form supplied with the Bidding Documents. Any modifications, revisions, deletions, etc. to the Bid Forms except where information is requested of the Bidder may be grounds for rejection of the Bid.
- 2. Provide all requested information and completely fill in all blanks on the bid form. Use typewriter or ink.
- 3. Interlineations, alterations and erasures must be clearly legible and initialed by the signer of the Bid.
- 4. On each copy of the Bid, include the legal name of the Bidder and a statement that defines the circumstance of ownership and control. The name of each person signing the proposal shall be typed or printed below the signature. When the proposal is signed by an agent of the Bidder, include evidence of current power of attorney. In every case, the proposal shall show the present business address of the Bidder, at which address communications will be received and service of notices accepted.
  - a. If the Bidder is a corporation, the proposal shall be signed in the name of the corporation and sealed by a duly authorized officer of the corporation.
  - b. If the Bidder is a partnership, the proposal shall be signed in the name or title under which the organization is doing business by an officer whose official capacity shall be designated.
  - c. If the Bidder is an individual, that individual shall sign the proposal in person, stating the name or title, if any, under which that individual is doing business.
- B. Bid Submission:
  - 1. One (1) original and two (2) copies of the Bid and other documents required to be submitted with the Bid shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope. The envelope shall be addressed to the party receiving the Bids and shall be identified with the Project name, and the Bidder's name and address. If the Bid is sent by mail, the sealed envelope shall be enclosed in a separate mailing envelope labeled SEALED BID ENCLOSED.
  - 2. ALL BIDS MUST BE SUBMITTED IN A SEALED ENVELOPE CLEARLY IDENTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

### **Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage** CRDA Project # 19-005

- 3. Bids may be submitted VIA: U.S. Mail, Overnight Mail or Hand and must be deposited at the designated location prior to the Bid Closing time and date.
- 4. Bids shall be addressed to:

Capital Region Development Authority (CRDA) 100 Columbus Boulevard, Suite 500 Hartford, CT. 06103-2819

Attn: Erica Levis

If you require assistance in locating CRDA's office call 860-527-0100.

- 5. Bid Closing Date: Bids will be received at **11:00 AM on June 28, 2019**, at the location indicated above and then opened. Late bids will not be accepted and will be returned to bidder unopened. Extensions will not be granted. Bidders are invited to attend the bid opening.
- C. Bid Package the Bid Package shall include the Bid Proposal Form and all of the documents listed in Attachment #1, Bid Forms.

### 6.5 Bid Security

- A. As security, each bid must be accompanied by a bid bond in the form attached hereto in an amount which shall be Five Percent (5%) of the Base Bid. The Bid Bond If the bidder is a small contractor or minority business enterprise pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes Section 4a-60g, it may provide in lieu of a bid bond, a letter of credit in an amount equal to Ten Percent (10%) of the bid if the estimated value is less than one hundred thousand dollars and in an amount equal to Twenty-Five Percent (25%) if the estimated value is one hundred thousand dollars or greater.
- B. Failure of the successful Bidder to execute a contract in accordance with its bid shall result in the forfeiture of the bid bond.

#### 6.6 Modification or Withdrawal of Bid

- A. Bid Withdrawal: Bids may be withdrawn only by written request received from the Bidder prior to the deadline for submission. No bidder may withdraw its bid within ninety (90) days from the actual date of bid opening. Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the date and time designated for the receipt of Bids provided that they are then fully in conformance with these Instructions to Bidders.
- B. Extension: Bids shall be valid for 90 days following the Bid Closing Date. If for some reason a contract cannot be awarded within the specified period, the time may be extended by mutual agreement between CRDA and the designated low bidder.
- C. Bid Modification: Bids may not be changed after the deadline for submission. A Bid submitted prior to the time and date designated for receipt of Bids, may be modified or withdrawn by notice to the party receiving Bids at the place designated for receipt of Bids prior to the deadline for submission. Such notice shall be in writing and signed by the Bidder. If notice is sent by telegram, written confirmation shall be mailed and postmarked on or before the date and time set for receipt of Bids. Any change shall be so worded as not to reveal the amount of the original Bid.
- D. Bid Clarification: CRDA reserves the right to request clarifications from any bidder, which shall be provided at the bidder's sole expense.

#### 6.7 Post Bid Scope Review Meeting

A. After the public Bid opening there will be scope review meeting(s) with the apparent low Bidder(s). These meetings will be held at CRDA Offices at the Connecticut Convention Center, 100 Columbus Boulevard, Hartford, CT. The purpose of these meetings is to review the apparent low bidder's proposals. The apparent low bidders will be notified by CRDA and shall be available to attend these meetings.

#### 6.8 Consideration of Bids

- A. The properly identified Bids received on time at CRDA's office, will be opened publicly.
- B. CRDA reserves the right to do any of the following without liability, including but not limited to:
  - 1. Award in part,

- 2. To reject any and all bids in whole or in part for misrepresentation or if the bidder is in default of any prior State contract, or if the bid or submission limits or modifies any of the terms and conditions and/or specifications of the bid;
- 3. Cancel the award or execution of any contract prior to the "Notice to Proceed;"
- 4. Advertise for new bids.
- C. CRDA also reserves the right to waive technical defect, irregularities and omissions if, in its judgment, the best interest of CRDA would be served.
- D. CRDA reserves the right to correct inaccurate awards resulting from clerical errors. This may include, in extreme circumstances, revoking the awarding of a contract already made to a bidder and subsequently awarding the contract to another bidder. Such action on the part of CRDA shall not constitute a breach of contract on the part of CRDA since the contract with the initial bidder is deemed to be void ab initio and of no effect as if no contract ever existed between CRDA and the bidder
- E. Every bid which is conditional or obscure, or which contains any addition not called for, may be considered invalid, and CRDA may reject every such bid.
- F. CRDA may reject a bid as non-responsive if the Bidder does not make all required pre-award submittals within the time designated by CRDA.

### 6.9 Acceptance of Bid

- A. It is the intent of the Owner to award a Contract to the lowest qualified Bidder offering the optimum combination of cost, service and schedule, provided that the apparent Low Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents and does not exceed the funds available within the budget established for this project by the Owner. The Owner reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids and to award the contract to the bidder deemed to be for its best interest. Consideration will also be given to bidder's affirmative action plan.
- C. The Bidder will be required to establish to the satisfaction of the Owner the reliability and responsibility of the persons or entities proposed to furnish and perform the Work described in the Bidding Documents.
- D. Prior to the award of the Contract, the Owner will notify the Bidder in writing if the Owner has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Bidder. If the Owner has reasonable objection to a proposed person or entity, the Bidder may, at the Bidder's option, (1) withdraw the Bid, or (2) submit an acceptable substitute person or entity with an adjustment in the Base Bid to cover the difference in cost occasioned by such substitution. The Owner may accept the adjusted bid price or disqualify the Bidder.
- E. Persons and entities proposed by the Bidder and to whom the Owner has made no reasonable objection must be used on the Work for which they were proposed and shall not be changed except with the written consent of the Owner.

# An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer. Minority/Women's Business enterprises are encouraged to apply.

## **DOCUMENT APPENDIX**

The following Ethics Forms are available at the website below:

Form 1 – Gift and Campaign Contribution Certification Form 5 – Consulting Agreement Affidavit Form 6 – Affirmation of Receipt of State Ethics Laws Summary Form 7 – Iran Certification is available at: http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=2982&q=386038&opmNav GID=1806

Guide to the Code of Ethics for Current or Potential State Contractors is available at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/ethics/lib/ethics/guides/contractors\_guide\_10.pdf</u>

CHRO Bidder Contract Compliance Monitoring Report is available at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/chro/lib/chro/pdf/notificationtobidders.pdf</u>.

Nondiscrimination Certification forms are available at: http://www.ct.gov/opm/cwp/view.asp?a=2982&q=390928&opmNav\_GID=1806.

State Elections Enforcement Commission Form 10 is available at: <a href="http://www.ct.gov/seec/lib/seec/forms/contractor\_reporting\_/seec\_form\_10\_final.pdf">http://www.ct.gov/seec/lib/seec/forms/contractor\_reporting\_/seec\_form\_10\_final.pdf</a>

Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 is available at: <u>https://www.irs.gov/uac/About-Form-W9</u>

Department of Revenue Services registration information for out of state contractors may be found at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/drs/cwp/view.asp?a=1454&q=506012</u>

### **CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATUTE**

**Connecticut General Statutes Sec. 1-85; (Formerly Sec. 1-68), Interest in conflict with discharge of duties** – A public official, including an elected state official, or state employee has an interest which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of his duties or employment in the public interest and of his responsibilities as prescribed in the laws of this state, if he has reason to believe or expect that he, his spouse, a dependent child, or a business with which he is associated will derive a direct monetary gain or suffer a direct monetary loss, as the case may be, by reason of his official activity. A public official, including an elected state official, or state employee does not have an interest which is in substantial conflict with the proper discharge of his duties in the public interest and of his responsibilities as prescribed by the laws of this state, if any benefit or detriment accrues to him, his spouse, a dependent child, or a business with which he, his spouse or such dependent child is associated as a member of a profession, occupation or group to no greater extent than any other member of such profession, occupation or group. A public official or state official or state employee who has a substantial conflict may not take official action on the matter.

## **ATTACHMENT 1 - REQUIRED BID FORMS**

The following forms must be completed and submitted as part of the Bid Submission

- 1. Bid Form (including Addendum Acknowledgement, Subcontractor List and Bid Guarantee)
- 2. Standard Bid Bond Form
- 3. Contractors Price Itemization Form
- 4. DAS Contractor Prequalification Certification and current Update (bid) Statement
- 5. Surety Letter from bidders bonding company stating the bidder, if awarded a contract, can obtain the required Performance and Labor and Materials Payment Bonds in the full amount of the Base Bid.
- 6. OPM Ethics Form 1, Gift and Campaign Contribution Certification
- 7. OPM Ethics Form 5, Consulting Agreement Affidavit
- 8. OPM Ethics Form 6, Affirmation of Receipt of State Ethics Laws Summary
- 9. OPM Iran Certification, Form 7
- 10. Guide to the Code of Ethics for Current or Potential State Contractors
- 11. Disclosure statement concerning any current business relationships (within the last three years) that pose a conflict of interest as defined by Connecticut General Statutes Section 1-85.
- 12. CHRO Bidder Contract Compliance Monitoring Report
- 13. Nondiscrimination Certification forms
  - a. Form A, Representation by Individual Regardless of Value
  - b. Form B, Representation by Entity for Contracts less than \$ 50,000
  - c. Form C, Affidavit by Entity for Contracts Valued at \$50,000 or More
  - d. Form D, New Resolution by Entity for Contracts Valued at \$50,000 or More
  - e. Form E, Prior Resolution by Entity for Contracts Valued at \$50,000 or More
- 14. State Elections Enforcement Commission Form 10
- 15. Internal Revenue Service Form W-9
- 16. General Conditions Certification
- 17. Labor Rates for each Trade Classification that will be used for this project on form attached as Attachment #2
- 18. Department of Revenue Services registration information for out of state contractors if required. Forms may be found at: <u>http://www.ct.gov/drs/cwp/view.asp?a=1454&q=506012</u>

**BF/1** 

# **RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT**

TO: CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 100 Columbus Boulevard, Suite 500 Hartford, CT 06103-2819

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

Bidder's Name:

The undersigned, having inspected the site and familiarized ourselves/myself with the local conditions affecting the cost of the work and the Contract Documents; Riverside Drive Outfall Project Plans dated May 8, 2017, revised June 7, 2017 and the Ensign Street Drainage Plans dated October 2018 as prepared by **Zuvic Carr and Associates** and on file with **Capital Region Development Authority**, hereby propose to provide all labor, materials, tools, equipment, temporary facilities and transportation necessary to complete the **Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage** as defined in the Contract Documents for the Contract Price of:

		I	Dollars
(\$	)		

This Bid Price shall include all charges such as overhead, profit, insurance, permits, etc.

Submitted herewith is the Bid Price Itemization including an amount for all project components required by the Bid Documents. The sum of all listed components shall equal the Bid Price.

Submitted herewith are all the forms as listed in the Instructions to Bidders, in accordance with these Instructions to Bidders.

We/I acknowledge that should conditions make it necessary to revise the scope of the project, the Bid Price Itemization shall serve as the basis for adjustments to the Bid Price.

## **STANDARD BID BOND FORM**

**BF/2** 

# RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

# CAPITAL REGION DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, That we,	,
hereinafter called the Principal ,of	, as Principal,
and,	hereinafter called the Surety, a
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of	, and duly authorized to transact
a surety business in the State of Connecticut, as Surety, are held and firmly bo	und unto Capital Region Development
Authority, as Oblige, in the penal sum of five (5) percent of the amount of the	bid set forth in a proposal hereinafter
mentioned, lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of	which, well and truly to be made to
the Oblige, the Principal and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors	s, administrators, successors and
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.	

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, That, whereas the Principal has submitted or is about to submit a proposal to the Oblige related to a contract for <u>Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage</u> <u>Projects, CRDA Project # 19-005</u>.

NOW, THEREFORE, if the said contract be awarded to the Principal and the Principal shall, within such time as may be specified, enter into the said contract in writing with the Capital Region Development Authority and give the required bonds, with surety acceptable to the Oblige, or if the Principal shall fail to do so, pay to the Oblige the damages which the Oblige may suffer by reason of such failure not exceeding the penalty of this bond, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED this \_\_\_\_\_day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_

Surety

(Print name)

by\_\_\_\_\_ Its attorney in fact

Company Name

(Print name)

# GENERAL CONDITIONS CERTIFICATION BF/3

The undersigned hereby affirms the Bidder shall adhere to the Conditions as contained in this ITB, the Sample Contract and the Project Manual.

Submitted:

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

(Signature of Official)

(Print Name and Title of Official)

## **BID FORM BF/4 RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT** Bidder's Name: **CONTRACT PRICE ITEMIZATION** Bid Item 1 – General Requirements for both Projects (section 2.1.A.a-p) \$ **RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL PROJECT** \$ Bid Item 2 – Erosion, Sedimentation and Dust Control Bid Item 3 – Land Clearing and Site Preparation \$ Bid Item 4 - Drainage & Bituminous Demolition & Abandonment \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 5 – Trench Structure & Pipe Excavation \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 6 – Pervious Structure Backfill \$ \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 7 – Processed Aggregate Base Bid Item 8A - Bituminous Paving & Curbing Installation \$\_\_\_\_\_ \$\_\_\_\_\_\* Bid Item 8B – Bit Paving & Curbing Material (1320 Tons x \$ ) = Bid Item 9 – Granite Curbing \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 10 – Pavement Markings and Signage \$ Bid Item 11 – Topsoil and Turf Establishment \$ Bid Item 12 – Concrete Sidewalks and Aprons \$\_\_\_\_\_ \$ Bid Item 13 – Drainage Manholes Bid Item 14 – Concrete Headwall \$ Bid Item 15 - Precast Concrete Vault \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 16 – Corrugated Metal Pipe \$ Bid Item 17 – Reinforced Concrete Pipe \$ \$ **Riverside Drive Outfall Project Subtotal (1-17)**

\*See Part 2.1 D f for liquid asphalt adjustment to bituminous concrete bid price.

Bid Item 26 - Topsoil and Turf Establishment

Bid Item 27 - Concrete Sidewalks & Aprons

Bid Item 29 - Reinforced Concrete Pipe

Bid Item 28 - Catch Basins f& Drainage Manholes

**Ensign Street Drainage Project Subtotal 1-29** 

# **BID FORM BF/5 RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE** EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT Bidder's Name: ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE PROJECT Bid Item 18 - Erosion, Sedimentation and Dust Control \$ Bid Item 19 - Drainage & Bituminous Demolition & Abandonment \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 20 – Trench, Structure and Pipe Excavation \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 21 - Pervious Structure Backfill \$ \$ \_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 22 – Processed Aggregate Base Bid Item 23A – Bituminous Paving & Curbing Installation \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 23B – Bit Paving and Curbing Material (80 Tons x \$\_\_\_\_) = \$\_\_\_\_\* Bid Item 24 – Granite Curbing \$\_\_\_\_\_ Bid Item 25 – Pavement Markings and Signage \$ \_\_\_\_\_

\*See Part 2.1 D f for liquid asphalt adjustment to bituminous concrete bid price.

\$\_\_\_\_\_

\$\_\_\_\_\_

\$\_\_\_\_\_

\$\_\_\_\_\_

BID FORM				I	3F/ <mark>6</mark>
RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND EN EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT	SIGN STREI	ET DRAINA	GE		
Bidder's Name:					
ALTERNATE BID ITEMS					
Bid Item 30 Disposal of Polluted Soil:	200 Tons X	Unit Bid Price	_/Ton =	\$	
Bid Item 31 Disposal of Contaminated Soil:	200 Tons X	Unit Bid Price	_/Ton =	\$	
Bid Item 32 Disposal of Hazardous Soil	200 Tons X	Unit Bid Price	_/Ton =	\$	
Bid Item #33 Provide Treatment and Disposa	l of Contamin	ated Groundv	vater		
50,00	00 Gallons X _	Unit Bid Price	_/Gal =	\$	
ALLOWANCE BID ITEMS					
Item #34 Provide Traffic persons				<u>\$140,000.00</u>	
Cont	ractor's Unit I	Bid Pricing:		\$	/hour
				\$	/day
Payment for Unit Cost Items will be base	d on in-place	work to be v	verified	by field measur	e.

TOTAL BID ITEMS 1 THROUGH 34 (THE "BID PRICE"): 
\$\_\_\_\_\_

**BF/7** 

# **RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT**

Bidder's Name:

## GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The bidder shall, before submitting his Proposal, carefully examine the Contract Documents. He shall inspect in detail the site of the proposed work and familiarize himself with all the local conditions affecting The Work and the detailed requirements of construction. If his Proposal is accepted, he will be responsible for all errors in his Proposal resulting from his failure or neglect to comply with these instructions or errors in judgment arising from said inspections of the work site and examination of the Contract Documents. The Engineer and/or the Owner will, in no case, be responsible for any losses or change in Contractor's anticipated profits resulting from such failure or neglect.

If the bidder finds any language in the Contract inconsistent, vague or difficult to understand or interpret, for any reason, he shall request clarification in writing from the Engineer or Owner not less than 5 working days prior to the scheduled dates for response thereto in writing to all bidders known to the Owner. Unless the bidder seeks clarification in accordance with this paragraph, he will be deemed to have waived his rights, if any he had, to object to said Contract language as vague or misleading for any reason.

When the plans and Special Provisions include information pertaining to surface observations, material testing and other preliminary investigations, such information represents only the opinion of the Engineer as to the location, character, or quantity of the materials encountered and is only included for the convenience of the bidder. The Owner/Engineer assumes no responsibility whatever in respect to the sufficiency or accuracy of the information, and there is no guarantee, either expressed or implied, that the conditions indicated are accurate or unanticipated developments may not occur. Said information shall not be considered by the parties as a basis for the Contract award amount.

The Bidder agrees that adequate time was allowed for the bidder to inspect all work sites and, unless express written request has been made, the Engineer/Owner will be presumed to have supplied the bidder all the information and access required to adequately complete the Proposal.

The estimated quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished under these Specifications are given in the Proposal. All quantities are to be considered as approximate and are to be used only for comparison of bids and as a basis for computing amounts of bid bonds, payments bonds and performance bonds to be furnished. The unit and lump sum prices to be tendered by the bidders are to be for the scheduled quantities as they may be increased or decreased.

**BF/8** 

# **RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT**

Bidder's Name:

Payments will be made to the Contractor only for the actual quantities of work performed and materials furnished in accordance with the Plans and Specifications. The scheduled quantities may each be increased or diminished or entirely deleted. Such changes may become necessary for the best interest of the project due to circumstances not known at the time the Contract was entered into or arising thereafter. In the event, in the sole judgment of the Owner or its representative such changes become necessary, the lump sum and unit prices set forth in the Proposal and embodied in the Contract shall remain valid.

Work acceptance is to be made by the Engineer.

Any extra work beyond the scheduled quantities requiring additional cost to the Owner shall be approved by the Owner prior to taking such action. Claims for extra work which have not been authorized in writing by the Owner and approved by the Engineer will be rejected and the Contractor shall not be entitled to payment thereof.

#### CONSTRUCTION TIME

Contractor shall reference the Instructions to Bidders for applicable requirements.

### RIGHT TO REJECT BIDS AND SIGNING CONTRACTS

In submitting this Bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Owner to reject any and all bids, and/or negotiate with the selected bidder or bidders, including splitting the work into multiple contracts, all as may be in the best interest of the Owner. If written notice of acceptance of this bid is mailed, delivered and/or otherwise transmitted to the undersigned within sixty (60) days after the opening thereof, or at any time thereafter before this bid is withdrawn by written notification, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver a Contract in the prescribed form. The Work shall be commenced by the successful bidder within 14 days after the Notice to Proceed from the Owner.

**BF/**9

# RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

Bidder's Name:

## ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:

ADDENDUM NUMBER	DATE OF ADDENDUM

## **BF/10**

## RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

Bidder's Name:

# <u>SUBCONTRACTOR'S LIST</u> (If applicable)

(1) Name
Address
Work Scope
(2) Name
Address
Work Scope
(3) Name
Address
Work Scope
(4) Name
Address
Work Scope
(5) Name
Address
Work Scope
(6) Name
Address
Work Scope

**BF/11** 

# **RIVERSIDE DRIVE OUTFALL AND ENSIGN STREET DRAINAGE EAST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT**

Bidder's Name:

### GENERAL STATEMENT

The information in this Bid is correct to the best information, knowledge and belief of the undersigned. The undersigned has checked all of the above figures and understands that the owner will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the undersigned in preparing this bid. In submitting this bid, it is understood that the right is reserved by the Owner to reject any or all bids and waive all technicalities and informalities in connection therewith, including negotiating with the selected bidder or bidders, including splitting the work into multiple contracts, all as may be in the best interest of the Owner. It is agreed that this Bid may not be withdrawn for a period of 60 days from the time of opening.

The undersigned declares that the person or persons signing this bid is/are fully authorized to sign on behalf of the firm listed, to all of the Bid's conditions and provisions thereof.

It is agreed that no persons or company other than the firm listed below or as otherwise indicated has any interest whatsoever in this Bid or the contract that may be entered into as a result of this Bid and that in all respects the Bid is legal and firm, submitted in good faith without collusion or fraud.

It is agreed that the undersigned has complied and/or will comply with all requirements of local, state or national laws, and that no legal requirements have been or will be violated in making or accepting this Bid, in awarding the contract to him and/or in the prosecution of the work required.

## SIGNATURE OF BIDDER

(Date)	da	y of	20	
(Firm Name)			1	
(Address)			(Se	al) -
(Signature)				_
(Name Typed)				_
(Title)				
Witness				
State of		, County of		
On this say that he is the Corporation/Partr such instrument is du			lly came, to me kno	wn who did depose and , g instrument and that

Notary Public

## Attachment 2 - Labor & Equipment Rates

Project: Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage

Location: East Hartford, Connecticut

Project Number: CRDA Project # 19-005

For additional work not reflected in the Lump Sum Bid Items or Unit Price Bid Items, the following labor rates shall apply. Use one sheet for each classification. Do not include Overhead and Profit.

Contractor: \_\_\_\_\_

Trade Classification:			
	Straight Time	Time & Half	Double Time
A. Base Rate			
B. FICA			
C. FUTA			
D. SUTA			
E. Workman's Comp			
F. General Liability			
G. Benefits (list each)			
H. Total			

# ATTACHMENT 3

## SAMPLE CONTRACT

The Contract for this project will be based on the AIA Document A104-2017, Standard Abbreviated Form of Agreement between Owner and Contractor.

The Contract Draft will be issued in a Bid Addendum.

See Addendum #4

## ATTACHMENT 4 GOODWIN COLLEGE SCHEDULE\*

\*Note this Goodwin College Schedule is subject to change. The intended bidders should allow for 5 shutdown days that will be used at the sole discretion of Goodwin College.

Important Dates:	January 1; new rears Dayloonege crosed	January 14: Spring Semester Begins	January 21: Martin Luther King, Jr. Day/College Closed	February 18: Presidents Day/College Open: No Classes		April 19-20: Good Friday & Easter Sunday Weekend/ College Open: No Classes	Anril 21: Easter Sundav/College Closed		April 28: Spring Semester Ends	April 29-May 12: Spring Break for Students	May 13: Summer Semester Begins	May 27: Memorial Day/College Closed	INA 8. CEADIIATION		July 4: Independence Day/College Closed	August 25: Summer Semester Ends	August 26-September 8: Summer Break for Students	September 2: Labor Day/College Closed	September 9: Fall Semester Begins	October 14: Columbus Day/College Open: No Classes	November 11: Veteran's Day (observed)/College Open:	No Classes	November 28-December1: Thanksgiving Holiday/	December 22: Fall Semester Ends
		\$		0	55	8	N				S		01	Ň	Ų,	8			S	-	8	с'n	3	8
		M		~1	F	2	80				M		6	5	8	N			M	ю	100	16	8	8
	Jar	-		00	5	В	8			-	T		-1	4	12	8		September	ч,	ω	5	17	4	
	January	W		ND.	16	23	8			May	T W Th	1	8	Сī	В	33		em	W Th	4	Ħ	5	8	
	V	1.	ω	Б	17	4	ų			1	Th	ю	vD	16	8	ଞ		ber	H	01	ស	<b>1</b> 9	8	
		-	4	H	50	8					-	ω	б	17	4	Ϋ́		•	T	0	5	8	N	
		S	Uì	Б	10	8					S	4	H	б	8				S	1	4	В	28	
		S		ω	ы	17	2				S		ю	v	16	23	30		S		0	ස	20	3
		M		4	H	50	8				M		ω	ij	17	2			M		7	4	N	28
	Fel	T		UI	ы	19	26			C	H		4	Ħ	16	8		0	T	L	8	51	В	.8
	February	TWTh		0	ដ	8	2			June	T W Th		U1	Б	õ	8		October	TW	N	9	16	8	8
	J.	H.		7	4	ы	8			æ	B		0	ü	8	2		er	H	ω	б	17	2	ų
		ч	-	00	5	В					-		1	4	N	8			Ŧ	4	Ħ	50	战	
õ		ŝ	N	\$	5	53					S	-	0	5	В	29			S	01	ы	19	26	
2019		\$		ω	5	5	2	ŝ			S		1	4	2	20			S		ω	5	5	12
-		M		4	=	ö	8				M		0	ۍ ت	B	18			M		4		150	8
	1	-		U	Б	<b>i</b> 9	26				H	ю	10	16	23	8		No	T		UI	ы	19	20
	March	W		0	5	8	N		•	July	W	ω	Б	17	2	ŵ		November			0	5	8	27
	ch	W Th		1	4	ß	25			Y	B	4	11	is	3			nbe	W Th		1	4	B	8
		-	-	8	5	ß	3				-	o	ы	19	8			r	F	1	8	či	B	.8
		S	N	0	5	23	В				5	0	5	8	2				S	N		16		
		re.			-	- KA	10									10000								
		M	-		4 5	22	N				2		4	11 1	6 1	oc 62 Sc 72 Gz 🎫			SI	-	00	5	B	8
		T	N		5	22	£ 6			T	1		0	N I	9 2	6 2		De	1 1	N	9	16 1	3	30 31
	April	W	ω	10	5 17	124	0			ang	11	a0	7	5	0 21	N N		Cel	M	4	0 11	10	4	12
	i	H	2 3 4	. =	50	8				USL	II		0	5	B	8		nbe	T	o	5	50	R	
		-	U)	15	19	8					F	N		5	23	8		December	F	6	5	20	3	
		S	0	ت ت		8					5	ω	E	17	4	42			s	~1	4	2	28	
													40											

Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage, CRDA 19-005 Page 37

## ATTACHMENT 5 Department of Labor Prevailing Wage Rates

See Addendum #1

# SCHEDULE A PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

## **Riverside Drive Outfall**

	COVER SHEET	
GN-1	GENERAL NOTES AND LEGEND	
1 OF 1	PROPERTY AND TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY	
DP-1	SITE REMOVAL PLAN	
EP-1	EASEMENT PLAN	
ES-1	EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN	
SP-1	SITE LAYOUT PLAN	
SP-2	PROFILE (STA. 0 - 1+50)	
SP-3	PROFILE (STA. 1+50 - 7+22)	
SP-4	OUTFALL PLAN	
CD-1	DETAILS	
CD-2	DETAILS	
CD-3	DETAILS	
Figure 1	Groundwater Contour Map, July 2015	(added in Addendum #1)
Figure 4	Petroleum Hydrocarbons in Soil, October 2008	(added in Addendum #1)

# Ensign Street Drainage

	COVER SHEET	
GN-1	GENERAL NOTES AND LEGENDS (Revised in Addendum #3	
EC-1	EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN	
EC-2	EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN	(Revised in Addendum #3)
DP-1	DEMOLITION AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN	(Revised in Addendum #3)
PP-1	PLAN AND PROFILE	(Revised in Addendum #3)
PP-2	PLAN AND PROFILE	(Revised in Addendum #3)
RR-1	ROADWAY RECONSTRUCTION PLAN	(Revised in Addendum #3)
GP-1	INTERSECTION GRADING PLAN	(Revised in Addendum #3)
CD-1	CIVIL DETAILS	(Revised in Addendum #3)
CD-2	CIVIL DETAILS	(Revised in Addendum #3)
CD-3	CIVIL DETAILS	
	MDC Plan for scheduled work in Ensign Street	(Revised in Addendum #3)

## **SPECIFICATIONS**

#### **Specifications Dated September 2018**

31 23 16.10	Handling, Transportation and Disposal o	of Regulated Soil (added in Addendum # 2)
31 42 00	Dewatering and Drainage	(added in Addendum # 2)
31 43 00	Handling Contaminated Water	(added in Addendum # 2, revised in Addendum #4)
	Technical Memo – Subsurface Investiga	tion (added in Addendum # 2)
	Add Alternates	(added in Addendum # 2, revised in Addendum #3 & #4)
01-01540	Maintenance & Protection of Traffic	(added in Addendum #4)
01-01540A	Traffic Control Persons	(added in Addendum #4)

# SCHEDULE B

#### STANDARD VENDOR TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### Section 1 Scope

Except as otherwise set forth in these Standard Terms and Conditions, all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. If there is a conflict between the terms and conditions set forth in these Standard Terms and Conditions and the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement, the terms and conditions set forth in these Standard Terms and Conditions shall prevail. Unless otherwise included herein, the defined terms used in these Standard Terms and Conditions shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Agreement.

#### Section 2 Laws and Regulations

This Agreement shall be interpreted under and governed by the laws of the State of Connecticut. Contractor, its employees and representatives shall always comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, statutes, rules, regulations, and orders of governmental authorities, including those having jurisdiction over its registration and licensing to perform services under this Agreement.

#### Section 3 Indemnity

To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify and shall defend and hold harmless the Capital Region Development Authority (CRDA), including their officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, monetary loss, interest, attorney's fees, costs and expenses of whatsoever kind or nature arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor or its employees, agents or sub-contractors, including those arising out of injury to or death of Contractor's employees or sub-contractors, whether arising before, during, or after completion of the services hereunder and in any manner directly or indirectly caused, occasioned or contributed to in whole or in part, by Contractor or its employees, agents or sub-contractors.

#### Section 4 Quality Surveillance and Examination of Records

All services performed by Contractor shall be subject to the inspection and approval of the State, CRDA and Desman at all times, and Contractor shall furnish all information concerning the services.

The State, CRDA or their representatives shall have the right, at reasonable hours, to inspect or examine the part of the plant or place of business or any books, records, and other documents of Contractor or its subcontractors pertaining to work performed under this Agreement and shall allow such representatives free access to any and all such plants, places of business, books and records. The State and CRDA will give the Contractor at least twenty-four (24) hours' notice of such intended examination. At the State's request, the Contractor shall provide the State and CRDA with hard copies or an electronic format of any data or information in the possession or control of the Contractor which pertains to the State's and CRDA's business under this Agreement.

The Contractor shall retain and maintain accurate records and documents relating to performance of services under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years after the final payment by the CRDA and shall make them available for inspection and audit by the State.

#### Section 5 Non-Discrimination

(a) For purposes of this Section, the following terms are defined as follows:

Riverside Drive Outfall & Ensign Street Drainage, CRDA 19-005 Page 40

- i. "Commission" means the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities;
- ii. "Contract" and "contract" include any extension or modification of the Contract or contract;
- iii. "Contractor" and "contractor" include any successors or assigns of the Contractor or contractor;
- iv. "Gender identity or expression" means a person's gender-related identity, appearance or behavior, whether or not that gender-related identity, appearance or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the person's physiology or assigned sex at birth, which gender-related identity can be shown by providing evidence including, but not limited to, medical history, care or treatment of the gender-related identity, consistent and uniform assertion of the gender-related identity or any other evidence that the gender-related identity is sincerely held, part of a person's core identity or not being asserted for an improper purpose.
- v. "good faith" means that degree of diligence which a reasonable person would exercise in the performance of legal duties and obligations;
- vi. "good faith efforts" shall include, but not be limited to, those reasonable initial efforts necessary to comply with statutory or regulatory requirements and additional or substituted efforts when it is determined that such initial efforts will not be sufficient to comply with such requirements;
- vii. "marital status" means being single, married as recognized by the State of Connecticut, widowed, separated or divorced;
- viii."mental disability" means one or more mental disorders, as defined in the most recent edition of the American Psychiatric Association's "Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders", or a record of or regarding a person as having one or more such disorders;
- ix. "minority business enterprise" means any small contractor or supplier of materials fifty-one percent or more of the capital stock, if any, or assets of which is owned by a person or persons:
  (1) who are active in the daily affairs of the enterprise, (2) who have the power to direct the management and policies of the enterprise, and (3) who are members of a minority, as such term is defined in subsection (a) of Connecticut General Statutes § 32-9n; and
- x. "public works contract" means any agreement between any individual, firm or corporation and the State or any political subdivision of the State other than a municipality for construction, rehabilitation, conversion, extension, demolition or repair of a public building, highway or other changes or improvements in real property, or which is financed in whole or in part by the State, including, but not limited to, matching expenditures, grants, loans, insurance or guarantees. For purposes of this Section, the terms "Contract" and "contract" do not include a contract where each contractor is (1) a political subdivision of the state, including, but not limited to, a municipality, (2) a quasi-public agency, as defined in Connecticut General Statutes § 1-120, (3) any other state, including but not limited to any federally recognized Indian tribal governments, as defined in Connecticut General Statutes § 1-267, (4) the federal government, (5) a foreign government, or (6) an agency of a subdivision, agency, state or government described in the immediately preceding enumerated items (1), (2), (3), (4) or (5).
- (b) (1) The Contractor agrees and warrants that in the performance of the Contract such Contractor will not discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons on the grounds of race, color, religious creed, age, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender identity or expression, mental retardation, mental disability or physical disability, including, but not limited to, blindness, unless it is shown by such Contractor that such disability prevents performance of the work involved, in any manner prohibited by the laws of the United States or of the State of Connecticut; and the Contractor further agrees to take affirmative action to insure that applicants with job-related qualifications are employed and that employees are treated when employed without regard to their race, color, religious creed, age, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sex, gender identity or expression, mental retardation, mental disability or physical disability, including, but not

limited to, blindness, unless it is shown by the Contractor that such disability prevents performance of the work involved; (2) the Contractor agrees, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, to state that it is an "affirmative action-equal opportunity employer" in accordance with regulations adopted by the Commission; (3) the Contractor agrees to provide each labor union or representative of workers with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining Agreement or other contract or understanding and each vendor with which the Contractor has a contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Commission, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this section and to post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment; (4) the Contractor agrees to comply with each provision of this Section and C.G.S. §§ 46a-68e and 46a-68f and with each regulation or relevant order issued by said Commission pursuant to C.G.S. §§ 46a-56, 46a-68e and 46a-68f; and (5) the Contractor agrees to provide the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities with such information requested by the Commission, and permit access to pertinent books, records and accounts, concerning the employment practices and procedures of the Contractor as they relate to the provisions of this Section and C.G.S. § 46a-56. If the contract is a public works contract, the Contractor agrees and warrants that he will make good faith efforts to employ minority business enterprises as subcontractors and suppliers of materials on such public works projects.

- (c) Determination of the Contractor's good faith efforts shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following factors: The Contractor's employment and subcontracting policies, patterns and practices; affirmative advertising, recruitment and training; technical assistance activities and such other reasonable activities or efforts as the Commission may prescribe that are designed to ensure the participation of minority business enterprises in public works projects.
- (d) The Contractor shall develop and maintain adequate documentation, in a manner prescribed by the Commission, of its good faith efforts.
- (e) The Contractor shall include the provisions of subsection (b) of this Section in every subcontract or purchase order entered into in order to fulfill any obligation of a contract with the State and such provisions shall be binding on a subcontractor, vendor or manufacturer unless exempted by regulations or orders of the Commission. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any such subcontract or purchase order as the Commission may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance in accordance with C.G.S. §46a-56; provided if such Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the Commission, the Contractor may request the State of Connecticut to enter into any such litigation or negotiation prior thereto to protect the interests of the State and the State may so enter.
- (f) The Contractor agrees to comply with the regulations referred to in this Section as they exist on the date of this Contract and as they may be adopted or amended from time to time during the term of this Contract and any amendments thereto.
- (g) (1) The Contractor agrees and warrants that in the performance of the Contract such Contractor will not discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons on the grounds of sexual orientation, in any manner prohibited by the laws of the United States or the State of Connecticut, and that employees are treated when employed without regard to their sexual orientation; (2) the Contractor agrees to provide each labor union or representative of workers with which such Contractor has a collective bargaining Agreement or other contract or understanding and each vendor with which such Contractor has a contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities advising the labor union or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and to post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment; (3) the Contractor agrees to comply with each provision of this section and with each regulation or relevant order issued by said Commission pursuant to C.G.S. § 46a-56; and (4) the Contractor agrees to

provide the Commission on Human Rights and Opportunities with such information requested by the Commission, and permit access to pertinent books, records and accounts, concerning the employment practices and procedures of the Contractor which relate to the provisions of this Section and C.G.S. § 46a-56.

(h) The Contractor shall include the provisions of the foregoing paragraph in every subcontract or purchase order entered into in order to fulfill any obligation of a contract with the State and such provisions shall be binding on a subcontractor, vendor or manufacturer unless exempted by regulations or orders of the Commission. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any such subcontract or purchase order as the Commission may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance in accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 46a-56; provided, if such Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the Commission, the Contractor may request the State of Connecticut to enter into any such litigation or negotiation prior thereto to protect the interests of the State and the State may so enter.56.

#### Section 6 Freedom of Information Requirements

Contractor acknowledges that Owner is a "public agency" for the purposes of the Connecticut Freedom of Information Act (the "FOIA") and that information relating to Contractor and its affairs received or maintained by Owner, either directly or through CRDA, shall constitute "public records or files" for the purposes of the FOIA subject to public access and disclosure in the manner provided in the FOIA, unless another specific exemption from public access and disclosure requirements of the FOIA is available in connection with particular records or files received or maintained by Owner.

#### Section 7 Insurance

Contractor agrees to maintain insurance policies protecting its property interests for Riverside Drive Outfall and Ensign Street Drainage Project located in the general area as defined in Section in 2.1.B.d of the Instruction to Bidders covering the following risks in the following minimum amounts and named additional insureds:

- (a) Workers' Compensation Contractor shall secure and deliver to CRDA evidence of workers' compensation (including occupational disease hazards) and Employer's Liability insurance, insuring their employees in amounts equal to or greater than required under Connecticut law. Provided that such required amounts are provided under Contractor's excess/umbrella coverage, the Employer's Liability insurance limits may be the minimum required by the excess/umbrella carrier as an underlying limit.
- (b) **Commercial General Liability** Contractor shall secure and deliver to CRDA prior to the commencement of the term hereunder and shall keep in force at all times thereafter during the term of the Agreement, a commercial general liability insurance policy, including bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, covering Contractor's activities and loss and damage to the Stadium and other facilities at the Stadium site occurring in connection with Contractor's activities, in the amount of not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) per occurrence and not less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00) in the aggregate per policy year, including products and completed operations, personal and advertising injury and blanket contractual liability coverage. Contractor shall also maintain umbrella liability insurance (following form) for the commercial general liability and employers' liability matters covered by the policies described in this Section hereof with a limit of Ten Million Dollars (\$10,000,000) in the aggregate.
- (d) Evidence of Insurance Contractor shall provide to CRDA, the Town of East Hartford (Town) and Goodwin College (Goodwin), not later than the commencement date of this Agreement and

annually thereafter, certificates of insurance evidencing the coverage's required by this Section, all in such form as CRDA, the Town and Goodwin may reasonably require, with Contractor as the named insured and with CRDA, the Town and Goodwin as additional insured's. The policies for said coverage's shall contain a provision covering Contractor's indemnification liabilities to CRDA and the Town (to the extent that the loss is of a nature that it would otherwise be covered under such insurance). Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, the above policies may contain exclusions from coverage which are reasonable and customary for policies of such type.

#### (e) Other Insurance Requirements -

- (i) All insurance required to be maintained under this Agreement must be placed with insurance companies reasonably licensed to do business in the state of Connecticut with the financial rating of at least A-(VIII) or better by the latest edition of A.M. Best's Rating Guide or, if such guide is no longer available, any generally recognized replacement therefore. All insurance required hereunder shall be written on an "occurrence" (as opposed to "claims made") basis.
- (ii) A certificate of insurance (evidencing renewal or replacement of coverage) shall be delivered to CRDA at least thirty (30) days before a policy's expiration date except for any policy expiring on the termination date of this Agreement or thereafter.
- (iii) All insurance procured by Contractor in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement shall be primary over any insurance carried by CRDA, shall not require contribution by CRDA and shall provide that the insurer shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against CRDA.

#### Section 8 Confidentiality

Contractor and CRDA each agree that neither will, at any time during or after the term of this Agreement, disclose or disseminate to any other person or entity, or use except as permitted by this Agreement, any information regarding the business, financial results, data, or marketing and business plans obtained during the course of performance under this Agreement (the "Confidential Information"). Each party will use its best efforts to ensure that any Confidential Information obtained from the other party will be disclosed only to the receiving party's employees and agents and only on a "need-to-know" basis, and that such employees and agents will be bound by an obligation to maintain the confidentiality of the Confidential Information similar to the obligations of CRDA and Contractor under this Section. Nothing contained herein will be construed to restrict or impair in any way the right of the parties to disclose or communicate any information which (i) is at the time of its disclosure hereunder generally available to the public; (ii) becomes generally available to the public through no fault of the receiving party; (iii) is, prior to its initial disclosure hereunder, in the possession of the receiving party as evidenced in a documentary form; (iv) is independently developed by a party without use of or reference to any of the other party's Confidential Information; (v) is acquired by the receiving party from any third party having a right to disclose it to the receiving party; (vi) is necessary for the receiving party to disclose in connection with a merger or acquisition or proposed merger or acquisition, or the like, provided the party to whom such disclosure is being made executes a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably satisfactory to the party whose Confidential Information is being disclosed; or (vii) is necessary to be shared with CRDA.

#### Section 9 Publicity

CRDA reserves the right to release all information relating to the subject matter of this Agreement and to determine the form, content and timing of the release of such information. Contractor will not divulge information concerning the subject matter of this Agreement to anyone (including, but not limited to a governmental authority in application for a permit, approval, or clearance, or to market its services) without CRDA's prior written consent, unless the disclosure is made by Contractor pursuant to the requirement or request of a governmental agency or court of competent jurisdiction to the extent such disclosure is required by a valid law, regulation or court order, and

other sufficient notice is given by the Contractor to CRDA of any such requirement or request to permit CRDA to seek an appropriate protective order or exemption from such requirement or request. The requirements of this Section shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

#### Section 10 Severability

The failure of CRDA or Contractor to insist upon the strict performance of any provisions of this Agreement, or the failure of CRDA or Contractor to exercise any right, option or remedy hereby reserved, shall not be construed as waiver for the future of any such provision, right option or remedy or as a waiver of a subsequent breach thereof. No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived unless such waiver shall be in writing signed by the party to be charged.

#### Section 11 Precedence.

In the case of any inconsistency between the provisions of the Agreement, including these Standard Terms and Conditions, and the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. Chapter 588z, the provisions of Conn. Gen. Stat. Chapter 588z shall govern.